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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Sterlite Convergence Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterlite Convergence Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the '‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.
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The Board of Director's report is not made available to us as at the date of the auditor's report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financjal statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, in electronic mode on servers physically located in India so far as it appears
from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of accounts
and other books maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers
physically located in India on daily basis for certain days during the year and for the
matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (Q;

(©) The BalanceSheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain
any material misstatement.
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V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company;

vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail
feature is not enabled for certain changes made using privileged/administrative
access rights, as described in note 35 to the financial statements. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where audit trail has been
enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was

enabled and recorded in the prior year.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
| Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITME5946

Place of Signature: Pune
Date: June 25, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Sterlite Convergence Limited (the "Company™)
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and
equipment.

(@ (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified
on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment or

Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@ The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any
point of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)Xb) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security or made any
investments in the companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided
guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature
of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(©
(d)
(e)
(f)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vip  (a
(b)

(viii)

In respect of loans granted to Companies, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the receipts are
regular. The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than 90 days.

There were no loans granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which have fallen due during the year,
that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms of period of repayment to any companies.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The company has not made any investments, provided any guarantees or
securities in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable, have been complied with by
the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor
accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The cost records specified by the Central Government u/s 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the financial year ended March
31, 2025. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, income tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(ix) ()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

@)

(x) (@

()

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not obtained/utilized term loans during the current year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial
public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the
year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause
3(xii)(@), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report
under clause 3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company.

xiv) (@ The Company does not have internal audit system and is not required to
have internal audit system under the provision of section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirements to report under clause
3(xiv) (a) and (b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to
report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) The provisions of section 45-A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2
of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xviXb)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK]
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(Xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to
Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(@) and (b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

AN

per Paul Alvares
Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITME5946

Place of Signature: Pune
Date: June 25, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sterlite
Convergence Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
J irm§é istration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares
Partner
Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITMES946 N
Place of Signature: Pune
Date: June 25, 2025




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

{All amounts in Bs. million unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

s (Rs.in million) ___(Rs. in million)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipnient 3 (= ({RITVAS
Intangible assets 4 21774 20563
Financial asscis
i Loans 5 - BRI
it Other financial assets f 1505 1225
Income tax assets (net) 742 723
Other non current assets 1 L3 =
. 23824 690,13
Current assets
Inventones 7 343 Fdy
Financial assets
1 Loans 3 43000 -
il Trade receivables iU ai 14 LT
it Cash and cash cquivalents % 11,95 4417
. Other bank balances L] T5.00 6300
v, Other financial assets 6 359 267
Other current assels I 1268 1219
602.79 139.11
Total assets 841.03 £829.24
—
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 10w 50 100 50
Other equity 13
i. Retained camings (349.25) (43,79
Total equity 61.25 54.71
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
1. Borrowings 14 - 49K 65
Contract liahilitics 16 7542 7444
Deferred tax liabilites (net) 2 5.56 237
Other non current liabilities 17 107.36 108,46
18834 684,41
Current liabilities
Financial linhilities
i Borrowmngs 14 50400 -
0. Trade pavables I5
- total ling dues of micra T and small P = =
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micm enterprises and small enterprises %171 Hlud
Other current liabilitics 17 .73 K17
591.44 90.11
Total liabilities 779.78 774.53
i b
Total equity and liabilities B41.03 829.24
*Amount less than Rs, (.01 million
22

Summary of matenal aceounting palicivs
The accompanymg notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

4OR2EEINNNNG

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number 105754
Place: Pune

Date: 25 June 2025

For and on behalf of the Boprd
Sterlite Convergence Limite

a Rajshekhar Deshraj
Direetor

DIN: 08920289

Place: Gurugram

Date: 25 June 2025

fiace; Gurugram
e: 25 June 2025

of

Nabo ;npa} Roy

Director

DIN: 10790313
Place: Gurugram
Date: 25 June 2023

MT "

Mittal Chacha
Company Secretary
PAN- BEXPC2T90)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 June 2025
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STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
{All amounts in Rs. milhon unless othenwise stated)

31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024

Not i i
i {Rs. in million Rs. in million}
INCOME
Revenue from contract with customers 1% 79.62 7331
Total income (1} 79.62 73.31
EXFPENSES
Purchase of traded goods 4145 36.2%
Other expenses 14 16.80 1588
Total expenses (11} 58.25 5517
Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (1) - (11} 21.37 18.14
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0 1291 1216
Finanee costs 21 3100 5u37
Finance income 2 {32.27) (51.55)
Profit/{loss) before tax 9.73 (1.84)
Tax expense:
Current tax 52 - ¥
Deferred tax 32 319 237
Income tax expenses kAL 237
Profit/{loss) for the year 6,54 (4.21)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive inceme to be reclassificd to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income not o be reclassified to profit or luss - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 6.54 4.21
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of Rs, 10 each (31 March 2024: Rs. 10) fully paid up]
Basic and diluted (Rs, per share) 23 0.65 (0.55)
Summary of material aceounting pelicivs 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
A
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STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2025

Notes
T (Rs. in million)

31 March 2024
{Rs. in million)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit/(loss) as per statement of profit and loss
Adjustment for taxation
Profit/(loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
- Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Finance income

- Finance costs

Operating Profit/(loss) before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

- (Increase Y/decrease in inventories

- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

- Increase in other current assets

- Decrease in non current liabilities

- (Decrease )/increase in other current liabilities
- (Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Changes in working capital

Cash flows from/(used in) operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets
Proceeds from/(Investments in) other bank balances {net)

Loan given to related party

Repayment of loan given to related party

Finance income

Cash flows from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings to related party (refer note 29)

Proceeds from equity share capital

Proceeds from borrowings from related party (refer note 29)
Finance cost paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year

6.54 (4.21)
3.19 2.37
9.73 (1.84)
12.91 12,16
(52.27) (51.5%)
50,90 59.27
21.27 18.04
0.05 (1.35)
(57.55) 9.00
(0.53) (2.78)
(0.61) (4.86)
1.56 (1.27)
(0.23) 4.10
(57.31) 2.85
(36.04) 20.89
(0.18) (1.75)
(36.22) 19.14
(25.00) 5
(12.00) 9.66
i (50.00)
35.00 15.00
50.55 48.28
48.55 22.94
. (100.00)
i, 100.00
1.35 4259
(50.90) (51.36)
(49.55) (8.77)
(37.22) 33.31
49.17 15.86
11.95 49.17




Components of cash and cash equivalents:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Balance with banks:
On current accounts 395 139
Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 8.00 47.78
11.95 49.17

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8)

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Short-term borrowings Long-term borrowings
01 April 2023 - 548,18
Cash flow

- Interest - -

- Proceeds/(repayments) - (49.53)
31 March 2024 - 498.65
Cash flow

- Interest - -

- Proceeds/(repayments) - 135
- Borrowings reclassified as current maturities during current year 500.00 (500.00)

31 March 2025
Summary of material accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All amounts in Rs. million unless othenwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Nos. in million Rs. in million
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach isseed, subscribed and fally poid
As at 01 April 2023 * 0.05 0.50
Issued during the year 1000 100.00
As at 31 March 2024+ 10.05 100.50
Issued during the vear - =
As at 31 March 2025 10.05 100.50
B. Other equity

Retained earnings Ew"’;:rﬂ";:““'"t Total

Balance as at 01 i\!ril 2023 * 69.65 28.07 (41.58)
Loss for the year {4.21% - 421y
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income (4.21) - (4.21)
Less: Equity component of loan transferred to retained camings 28.07 {28.07) 4
Balance as at 31 March 2024+ (45.79) - (45.79)
Profit for the year 6.54 - 6.54
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income 6.54 - 6.54
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (39.25) - (39.25)

* There are no changes on account of prior peried cors,
Summary of material accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

1. Corporate information

Sterlite Convergence Limited (“the Company™) is a subsidiary of Sterlite Interlinks Limited (“SILL"). The
Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 on 16 June 2017. The registered
office of the Company is located RMZ Infinity, 5" Floor, Plot No.15, Phase-1V, Udyog Vihar, Gurugram-
122015, Haryana. India. The CIN of the company is U64100HR2017PLC102280.

The Company has been formed with a focus of operating in the telecom infrastructure industry.

The financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 25 June 2025.

2. Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
(as amended from time to time). as notified under section 133 of the Companies act 2013 (*the act’).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated.
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

The following is the summary of material accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
financial statements:

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents all assets and liabilities other than deferred tax assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/non-current classification as per Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out
in Schedule III (Division 1) to the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities.

An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= [t isexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

= [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle to be twelve months.




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

b) Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from contracts for development of network infrastructure

In case of revenue from contracts for development of network infrastructure, the performance obligation is
satisfied progressively over the construction period. The Company’s progress towards completion is measured
based on the proportion that the contract expenses incurred to date bear to the estimated total contract expenses.

The estimates of contract cost and the revenue thereon are reviewed periodically by management and the
cumulative effect of any changes in estimates is recognised in the period in which such changes are
determined. Where it is probable that total contract expenses will exceed total revenues from a contract, the
expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Rendering of maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over the contract period as and when services are rendered. Revenue is
recognised on a straight line over the contract period. Maintenance charges are billed to the customer on a
monthly basis.

Contract balances

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Amounts which have been bills to the
customers are disclosed as trade receivables and amounts which are to be billed to the customers (and not
conditional on the group's future performance) are disclosed under Other financial assets. Refer accounting
policies for financial assets in Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities represent consideration received from customers in advance for providing the goods and
services promised in the contract. The Company defers recognition of the consideration until the related
performance obligation is satisfied. Contract liabilities include recurring services billed in advance and the
non-recurring charges recognized over the contract/ service period. Contract liabilities have been disclosed as
deferred revenue in the financial statements.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

¢) Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act. 1961; and the Income Computation and Disclosure
Standards prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assels
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

®  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss:

= In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

= When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

= In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Goods and service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except:

*  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority. in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable

= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

d) Intangible assets /(-

u
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognmop \
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losse ;\

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs of network infrastructure for whic Q\ o O ,-;‘:;,-"
Yio L Q2
SRS




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

the company has rights to use/monetize such in infrastructure, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method. as
appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
cost of another asset.

The company does not have any intangible asset with indefinite useful live.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

¢) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets
are prepared for the entire project life.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment
is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill. an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists. the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

f)  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is =~ "~
recognised as a separate asset. but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to ,&i 'f_-: X =
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. e

L
.j{
.




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

g) Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stores and spares - Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and all expenses
incurred to bring the inventory to its present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

h) Financial instruments

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.. the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument® is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met; s
. s . . . s + . ‘r'.'L_r':.; .
a)  The asset is held w a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contracfiial cash

;‘-:J '
e




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. The company does not have significant financial assets which are subsequently measured at

amortised cost.

Debt instrument at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
A “debt instrument” is classified as the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Company does not have significant
financial assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCIL.

Debt instrument at FYTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI. is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

This category is generally applied to trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
statement of profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition .
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar ﬁnancial/_gx__sgc@}
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s combined balance sheet) when: 8y,

'y

o




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

®  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement. it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor
transferred control of the asset. the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case. the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. loans and borrowings. payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs and trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities further includes trade and other payables, borrowings in nature of term
loans etc. For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or_
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new ’]/ifl.l?f!ity-.--Th@‘\ \‘\
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. I;.-"__,';‘" N




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident fo external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting Treatment
classification Classification
Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between

previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

FVTPL Amortised Cost

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCL. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

Amortised cost FVTOCI

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as
if' it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTOCI Amortised cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount.
No other adjustment is required.

FVTPL FVTOCI

Assets continue to be measured at fair value, Cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of
profit or loss at the reclassification date.

FVTOCI FVTPL

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the combined balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

i) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders (after

deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus e

element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the \C
L/ \

ding, without a corresponding change in resources.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

k) Presentation of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a
separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. This is not required by the Ind AS 1. The
EBITDA is not defined in the Ind AS. Ind AS compliant schedule I11 allows companies 1o present line items,
sub line items and sub totals to be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the financial
statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the Company’s financial position or
performance.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not
include depreciation and amortisation expense, finance income, finance costs and tax expense.

) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Core
Management Committee which includes the Board of Directors which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(*CODM?) and considering the economic characteristics of the Company’s operations, the Company's activities
primarily comprise of transmission of electricity in certain states in India. Under Ind AS - 108 “Operating
Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment.

23 New and amended standards

Several amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2025, but do not have an impact on
the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. and
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The following recent developments in Ind AS are
relevant for consideration in the current and upcoming reporting periods:

i. Implementation of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through a notification dated August 12, 2024 notified Ind AS 117 —
Insurance Contracts, which supersedes Ind AS 104, Ind AS 117 establishes a comprehensive accounting
framework for insurance and reinsurance contracts. It aims to ensure that entities provide relevant and
comparable information through consistent recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure principles.

Ind AS 117 introduces a general measurement model based on the present value of future cash flows, a risk
adjustment, and a contractual service margin. It also allows a simplified premium allocation approach for
certain short-duration contracts, The standard is applicable to entities engaged in issuing insurance contracts
and holding reinsurance contracts.

The Company has assessed the applicability of Ind AS 117 and concluded that it does not have a material
impact on its financial statements, as the Company is not engaged in the business of issuing insurance or
reinsurance contracts.

=L




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leascback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 116, Leases. with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind
AS 116.

The amendment does not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements as there is no right of use
asset.

2.4  Standards notified but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Group's financial statements are disclosed below. The Group will adopt this new and amended
standard, when it become effective.

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to Ind AS 21

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should
determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of
information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being
exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance,
financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial statements
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(Al ameunts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated)

Nate 3: Property, plant and equipment
(Rs. in million}

Description Office equipment
Asat 01 April 2023 .02
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 002
Additions ¥
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2025 0.02
Depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 0.0z
Charge for the year 0.00*
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 0.02
Charge for the year {r00*
Disposals -
As al 31 March 2025 .02

Net book value
As at 31 March 2024 0.00*
As at 31 March 2025 .00+

*Amount less than Rs 0.01 million

Note 4: Intangible assets

(Rs. in million)
Description Softwares/ licenses Ripht of way Tatal
Cost
As at 01 April 2023 - 155.43 15543
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2024 - 255.43 255.43
Additions 2500 - 2500
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2025 25.00 255,43 280.43
Amortisation
As at 01 April 2023 - 37.62 37.62
Charge for the year - i2.16 12.16
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2024 = 49.78 49.78
Charge for the vear 0.73 12.1% 1291
Disposals - = -
As at 31 March 2025 0.73 61.96 62.69
Net book value
As at 31 March 2024 - 205.65 205.65
As at 31 March 2025 24.27 193.47 217.74
Right of way
The Company has undertaken a project awarded by G Metrapol Devel Authority ("GMDA”) to a consortium of which the Company 15 a party which mvelves laving of four ducts for ercation of Optical Fibre cable

hackbone network for Gurugram smart city as per the designs approved by GMDA “The entire infrastructure shall be in the ownership of GMDA, Out of the four ducts, the Company will be given right of use of two ducts for monctizing its
investments One duct along with Optical Fibre Cable shall be used solely by GMDA and one duct will be spare and will be in the custody of GMDA, revenue camed out of the said duct shall be shared between GMDA and the consortivm
The Company shall also undertake maintenance of the above network infrastructure for a period of 21 vears on its own cost

The ideration for the develop of infra for GMDA's use and for the maintenance of the same for 21 vears will be in the form of Right of Way (ROW') for the above project given by GMDA and no cash consideration will be
received from GMDA. For the two duets for which the rights of use/monctisation will be with the Company, there will be no restrictions from GMDA on the customers or the pricing to be charged by the Company. The Company has valued

the consideration in the form of ROW at fair value which is included in intangible asset and the intangible assets under d 7

The Company has also recognised contract hability at present value of futnre cash flows for its p bhigations related to mai - of the ducts over the period of 21 vears.

Note 5: Loans (unsecured, considered good)

Particula 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Artientars (Rs. in million) ___(Rs. in million)

Loan to the immediate holding company* {refer note 29) = 3500

Loan to the mtermediate holding company® (refer note 29) 43000 430,00

Total 43000 465.00

*Duning the previous year. the ovwnership of the Company hias been transferned to Sterlite Interdinks Limited from Sterlite Electrie Limited {*SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmussion Limited (SPTL)). Therefore, loan given 1o
"SEL" in the previous year has been termed as Loan to the intermediate holding company. The lean amounts to Rs, 430 million carries an interest rate of 10% pa. and is repayable at the end of 3 years.

The Company has given a loan of Rs, 50 million to Sterlite Interlinks L " Immediate Holding Company™ in the previous year camries an interest of 10% p a (31 March 2024: 104 p.a.) and is repayvable after 3 vears from the date the loan
is availed, of which Rs 15 million has been repaid during the previous year. In the current year, remaining balance of Rs. 35 million has been fully paid.

Compliance to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
Based on the legal opinion obtained by the management, the Company is engaged in Development of Telecom network imfra hence it 1s dered as 1 as per Schedule V1 af the Comp Act, 2013 for the
purpese of compliance with the section 186 of the Companics Act 2013 A Jingly, the provisions of section 186 (2) to seetion 186 (11) are not applicable te the Tompany
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(ANl amounts in Rs million unless otherwise stated)

Break-up of loans and advances in the nature of loans as at vear end:

Tape of borrower

Promater
Related parties

Note 6: Other financial assets

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Amount of lnans

Percentage to the  Amount of loans  Percentage to the

and advancesinthe  total loansand  and advancesin the  total lonns and
nature of loan advances in the nature of loan advances in the
outstanding nature of joans vutstanding nature of loans

- e 35,00 %

43000 1EHI, 430,00 Y%

-I.'E.O_ﬂ 1_92_"/. 465,041 I%

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particul

e (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Non-current
Security deposits (unsecured. considered good) 0.0 0%
Other bank balances * 1156 1156
Interest acerued on fived deposits 141 061
Total 13.05 12.25
Current
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 350 247

3.59 2.67
.

Total
*held as lien with Gurgaon Metropolitan Develop Authonty
Security deposits are non-derivative financial assets and are nefundably in cash

Inventories (Valued at lower of cosi and net realisable value)

Particulars

31 March 2025
(Rs. in million,

Stares and spares (al cost)

Total

31 March 2024
Rs. in million)

343 idx
3.43 348
=

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

31 March 2025
(Rs. in million,

Balance with banks in curment account
Deposit with erginal maturity of less than 3 months

Total

Note 9: Other bank balances

31 March 2024
(Rs. in million)

3.95 13%
LRI 4778
11.95 917

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million}

Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months

Total

Note 10: Trade receivables

Ti.00 6300
75.00 63.00
e — =

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particul S
sl (Rs.in million) __(Rs. in million)
Receivables from related party (refer note 29) i, 14 R 60
Total 66.14 .60
Break-up of security details:
= Unseeured, considered good .14 860
- d, credit impaired receivabl - -
66,14 560

Total
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{All amounts in Rs unless otheiwise stated)

Ageing of current trade receivables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

Undisputed Trade recevables — considered good
Undisputed Trade reecivables = which have sigmificant
increase in credit rish

Undisputed Trade recvivables - credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good
Disputed Trade receivables — which have sigmificant
inerepse in credit rish

Disputed Trade neceivables — encdit impaired

Total

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed Trade bles = dered good
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant
inercase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade recevables — credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit rish

Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Amount not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Moaore than 3 vears Tatal

211 64 (13 - - - - 66,14
211 £4.03 - - = - 66.14
- —=
Qutstanding for follawing periods from due date of payment
Amount not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears Mare than 3 vears Total
I 80 LR - . = ” 860
1.50 6.80 - - - - B.60

No trade receivables ane due from dircetors or other officers of the Company whether severally or joinily with any other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or priviate companies respectively in which any director is partner, a

direetor or a member.

Trade reccivables are non-intercst bearing and are generally on terms of between 30 - 60 days.

Note 11: Other current assets

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

icul
i (Rs. in million) {Rs. in million)
Non corrent
Prepaid expenses 003 -
Total 0.03 -

— -

Current
Balance with gavemment authonties 1258 1o a3
Interest receivable from related party {refer note 29} - 156
Prepaid expenses in o3
Others - o2
Total 12.68 12.19

Note 12: Equity share capital

Particulars

31 March 2025
(Rs. in million

Authorised equity shares

10,05 million (31 March 2024 10,05 million) equity shares of Rs, 10/- ¢ach

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity shares

1005 million {31 March 2024 : 1005 million) equity shares of Rs 10/ ¢ach fully paid-up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital

#. Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

At the begimning of the vear
Add: Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Campany has only one class of cquity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity

will by in p

recuive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all pref

31 March 2024
Rs. in million)

L0000, 511 1050
e ——
10050 10050
100.50 100.50
— —

31 March 2025
No. in million Rs. in million

31 March 2024

No. in million

Rs. in million

10.05 106 50 003 050
& = 1000 1 ity 00
10.05 1040.50 10.05 104,50

¥ shars is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entithed 1o
to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders
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(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

¢. Details of shareholders hulding nore than 5% of shares in the company

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. in million Yo holding No. in million % holding
Sterlite Interlinks Limited (immediate holding company ) 1005 g% 1005 LI
10.05 1041 10.05 100%
i — s = LELELR
d. Detail of shareholding of promoters
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Promoter name No. in million % holding %o change during No. in million % holding % change during
the period the period
Sterite Interlinks Limited (immediate holding company) 10 1% 0 00%% 10.05 T 100 (%
Total 10.05 100%a - 10.05 100% -
* Qut of 1otal 10.035 million sharcs (31 March 2024 10.05 million shares). 6 cquity shares (31 Mareh 2024 6 shares) are held by nominee sharcholders.
Note 13: Other equity
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{Rs. in million) {Rs. in million)
Retained earnings
Opening balance (45.79) (69.65)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the vear 6.54 (4.21)
Add: Transferred from cquity component of loan* = 2807
Closing balance (39.25) (45.79)
Equity component of loan
Opening balance = 2807
Add: Transferred to retained camings* - (28.07)
Closing balance - =
*During the previous year, Sterite Electric Limited ('SEL'} (formerly known as Stedite Power Transmission Limited (SPTLY) ( hil diate holding PRIy BOW diate helding Company) has sold its entire stake in the
Company and the loan has been repaid in full, ingly the equity comp of loan has been transfermed to retained camings.
Note 14: Borrowings
Non-current Current
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{Rs. in million) {Rs. in million (Rs. in million) {Rs. in million,
Loan fiom related pany (seeured) (refier note 29 and (a) below) - 495 65 SIHO0 -
Total - 498.65 S(4.00 -
{a) The Company has taken a sceured loan from Maharashir Te ton € I Limited (Lender) amounting to Rs 500 million {March 31, 2024 500 million) carrving interest at the mate of £ 61%% pa and is

repayable ot end of 3 years. The loan is secured against 2) a first and exclusive change over Right To Monetise: and b) a first and exclusive charge by way of pledge over 100% cquity share capital of the Barrower in favor of the Lender

MNote 15: Trade pavables
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) {Rs. in million)
Trade payables
- total outstanding ducs of micro caterprises and small enterprises - -
-1otal outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs £1.71 B1u4
Total 81.71 £1.94
Other details
- Related parties including management fees (refer note 29) T79.54 7789
- Others 217 4405
Total 51.71 81.94

Ageing of trade payables
(Rs. in million)

Outstanding for follawing perinds from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MEME - - - . - = o
Others .27 075 il 341 = BB A 81.71
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 227 0.75 iﬂ 341 - 6_3'12_‘ 81.71
MSME - - - - - - i
Otliers 225 il 1100 1547 5321 A1.94
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - = - - -
Tatal 2.25 .01 11.060 - 1547 53.21 £1.94
— — ——ie

Trade pavables are non-interest bearing and ane nomally settled benween 30-90 days tenns
For explanation on the Company’s risk management policics, refer note 27,
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Note 16: Contract liabilities

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Parti
articolars (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

Contract Liability 75.42 Ta44
Total 75.42 T4.44

Note 17: Other liahbilities

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Part;
i (Rs. in million) ___(Rs. in million)

Non-current

Deferred revenue 107 36 108 Y6

Total 107,36 108.%6

e

Current

Deferred revenue 856 794

TDS pavable 1Lla o2l

GST payable (X0 nng

Total 9.73 517

Note 18: Revenue from contract with customers

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Parti
articulars (Rs. in million) . in million
Revenue from operations & maintenance contrcts 21,51 21.87
Revenue from IRU contracts 823 7.62
Revenue share from GMDA 794 T49
Revenue from sale of traded goods 4194 3633
Total revenue from contract with customer 79.62 73.31

18.1 Disaggregated revenue inf

tion of the Company s revenue from contracts with customers:

St out below is the disagpre,

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulars (Rs. in million} {Rs. in million)
Type of goods or service

Indin 7462 7331
Outside India - 7
Total revenue from contracts with customers 79.62 73.31

Timing of revenue recognition

Ruevenue recognised at a point in time 4194 3633
Revenue recopnised over time 3768 YR
79.62 73.31

Tatal revenue from contracts with customers

18.2 Contract balances

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Farticalni (Rs. in million) ___(Rs. in million)

Contract assets 6 14 ([IRYN]
Contract liabilities 191.34 19133
The company pravides fibre capacity drwn from its OPGW network to retail, wholesale and I on indefeasible nght of use or annual rate basis Ifa pays deration before the Company
transfirs goods or services to the customer. a contract liability is recognised when the pavment is made. Contract liabilitics are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract

18.3 Performance obligation

Thie performance obligation is sansficd over the contract period as the services are rendered Revenue is recogmised on a straight line over the contract penod

Opcration & mai wevenue is recognized based on satisfiction of the terms & conditions as woned in the ag

The Company 15 undertaking a projeet awarded by Gurugram Metropolitan Develog Authority ("GMDA”) to a eansortium of which the Company is a party which involves laying of four ducts for creation of Optical Fibre cable
backbone network for Gurugram smart city as per the designs approved by GMDA (N k Infy ') Network Infr: shall be in the hip of GMDA: Out of the four ducts, the Company will be given right of use of two

ducts for menetizing its investments. One duct along with Optical Fibre Cable shall be used solely by GMDA and one duet will be spare and will be in the custody of GMDA, revenue camed out of the said duct shall be shared between
GMDA and the consortium The Company shall also undertake maintenance of the above Network Infrastructure for a period of 2| years an its own cost

The ideration for the develop of Network Infra for GMDA's use and for the maintenanee of the sume for 21 vears will be in the form of Right of Way (ROW') for the above praject given by GMDA and no cash consideration
will be received from GMDA. For the two ducts for which the rights of use/monctisation will be with the Company, there will be no restrictions from GMDA on the customers or the pricing to be charged by the Company, The Company has
valued the consideration in the form of ROW at fair value, The per ] consist of develoy of i for GMDA (other than two ducts for which monetisation rghts are with the Company} and maintenance of the

same for 21 years These perft bligations are idered to be satisfied over time
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Accordingly. the Company's performance obligation with respect to construction of Network |
prepartion that the contract costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

vely over the construction period The Compamy's progress towards completion is measured based on the

Also, the consortium of the Company and Stedite Interlinks Limited (SIL") have been given right of use of two duets for monetizing its imvestments in Network Infiastructure, SIL. being 1P Feence holder. has entered into agrecment with
Telecom Service Providers (TSP} for right of use Infastructure Network. As per the amangement between the parties, SIL will raise invoices on TSPs and will pay S4.90%% of the amount received/ invoiced to the Company

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Rs. in million} (Rs. in million)

Amount included in contract liabilitics at the beginning of the vear

Transaction price allocated to the ining perf e
= Within one vear
=Maore than one vear

Note 19: Other expenses

794 762
336 784
182 78 18339

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million}

Metwork maintenance charpes
Management fees (refer note 29)
Professional fees

Fayment to auditors

= Statutery audit fees

Rates and taxes

Outsourced manpower

Legal fee

Printing and Stationary
Miscellancous expenses

Total

Corporate social responsibility expenses

Seetion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on the Company and hence, the Company is not required 1o contribute towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities

T43 vl
384 451
0,23 0zl
1123 .25
2.08 219
277 1 68

& 0.65

- (]
23 [INE]

16,8_0 lﬁ,&

Note 20: Depreciation and amaortisation expense

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Depreciation of plant. property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset

Total
* Amount is less than Rs 0 01 million

Nate 21: Finance costs

{Rs, in million) (Rs. in million)
[HEThs 0.y
1291 1216
12.91 12.16

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{Rs. in million) (Rs, in million)

Interest expenses on cantract liability

Interest on financial liability valued ot amortized cost (refer nate 29)
Bank charges

Total

Note 22: Finance income

LRE] 878

4197 R

LR 010

51.00 59.37
e

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{Rs. in million Rs. in million)

Interest income on fixed deposits
Interest income on income tax refind
Intercst income on loans to related partivs (refer note 29)

Tutal

Mote 23: Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amaunts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss) for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding dunng the period

729 630
0.26 016
4472 4309
52.27 51.58

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profitiiloss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duning the period plus the weighted average number of equity: shares that would be

issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the profit/{loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation

Profit/(loss) after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPS (Rs. in million)

Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic and diluted EPS (No. million)

Earnings per share
Basic and Diluted {on nominal value of Rs. 10 per shanc) Rs per shar

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

6.54 {4.21)
103 767
.65 (0.55)




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
tAll amounts in Rs. million unless othurwise stated)

Note 24: Use of ing jud timates and pli
The preparation of the Company's ial requires {3 to make jud i and pions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the ving discl and
the discl af gent habil 4] v about these assumptions and estimates could result in outeomes that require a matenial adjustiment to the eanmving amount of assets or habilities afeeted in future peniods

Judgements
In the process of applyving the Conmpany’s g policics, has made the following jud, - which have the most significant effcet on the amounts recognised m the finaneial statehents
evenue fi c1s with custome
The Company 15 undertaking o project awarded by G Metropolitan Develog Authonity ("GMDA™} to a consortium of which the Company is a panty which invelves laving of four ducts for creation of Optical Fibre cable
backbone network for Gurigram smart city as per the designs approved by GMDA ("Network Infi '), Network Infi shall be in the ownership of GMDA: Out of the four ducts. the Company will be given right of use of two

duets for monctizing its investments, One duct along with Optical Fibre Cable shall be used solely by GMDA and one duct will be spare and will be in the custody of GMDA, revenue camed out of the said duet shall be shared between
GMDA and the consortium. The Company shall also undertake maintenance of the sbove Network Infiastructure for o period of 21 vears on its own cost

The feration for the develop of Network Infrastructure for GMDA's use and fior the mamtenanee of the same for 21 vears will be in the form of Right of Way ('ROW') for the above praject given by GMDA and na cash consideration
will be received from GMDA. For the twao ducts for which the rights of usc/manctisation will be with the Company, there will be no restrictions from GMDA on the customers or the pricing to be charged by the Company. The Company has
valued the consideration i the form of ROW at fair value. The per bligations consist of develop of infi ture for GMDA (other than two ducts for which monetisation rights are with the Company} and maintenance of the

same for 21 years. These perft igations are idered to be satisfied over time,

In respect of the contract with GMDA, the i has d ined that the promises for devel of infi ture for GMDA (other than two ducts for which monetisation rights are with the Company) and for maintenance of the
same for 21 years arc distinet within the context of the contract. Hence these have been considered as separate performance obligations Further, these per hligations are idered to be satisfied over time based on the
requirements of Tnd AS 115

I e Intangible s
As explained above, the id for the devel af Network Infrastructure for GMDA's use and for the mamtenance of the same for 21 years will be in the form of Right of Way ('ROW) for the above project given by GMDA and

no cash consideration will be received from GMDA. For the two ducts for which the rights of use/monetisation will be with the Company, ther: will be no nestrictions fram GMDA on the customers or the pricing to be charged by the
Company. Therefore. the Company has exercised significant judgement and valued the consideration in the form of ROW at fair value

Further, the value in use of ROW is highly sensitive to changes in critical vanable used for forecasting the futare cash flows fiom the contracts with customer, increase in maintenance eost and rates of margins. The Campany has exercised
significant judgement and evaluated that there are no indicators of impaiment in case of it's ROW.,

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions coneerning the future and other kev sources of estimati inty ab the reporting date, that have a significant risk of cousing a material adjustment to the camving amounts of assets and Tiabilities within the nest
! 1 5

financial year, are deseribed below. The Company based its ptions and esti on | ilable when the f | wern d. Existing ci and ptions about future d L may
change due to market changes or cireumstances arising that an: heyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur

LV 4 n ALY
Under the contract with GMDA, the ideration for the develo of mfa for GMDA's use and for the maintenance of the same for 21 yvears will be in the form of Right of Way (ROWY given by GMDA and no cash
consideration will be received from GMDA. The Company has valued the consideration in the form of ROW at fair value. The key ptions used for d ining the fair value of ROW includes applicable ROW rates, discount mte and

cost inflation rate

Further. a portion of the total consideration as above has been allocated to maintenance services based on the expected margins from such services

of non fin '
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash gencrating unit exeeeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For the purpose 1f assessment for impaiment, the
management has compared the camyng value of an assct or cash generating unit with the value in use. The value in use calculation 15 based on a DCF mode] The verable amount is ive to the di i rate used for the DCF model as

well as the expected future cash-inflows and other

Nate 25: Capital and other commitments

As at 31 March 2025, the Company has commitments of Rs. Nil (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil)

Note 26: Segment inflormation

The principal commercial activity of the Company would be moking available fibre capacity on lease rental to retail, wholesale and iselconp . dravwn from Optical Power Ground Wire (OPGW) network . On review of all
the relevant aspects including, in particular, the system of intemal financial reporting to the Board of Directors which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM?) and considering the economic charmeteristics of the Company's
operations, the Company is of the view that it aperates in a single primany scgment, The said treatment is in accordance with the guiding principles enacted in Indian A ing Standord 108 Operating Segment (Ind AS 108},

Note 27: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilitics comprise of L ings and trade pavables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Compans ‘s prineipal financial assets include loans, trade
bles, bank bal and other fi ial asscts.
The Company could be exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior the T of these risks. It 1s the Company’s palicy that no trading in dervatives for speculative purposes may

be undertaken The management reviews and agrees policics for managing each of these risks, which are summansed helow.

The Risk Management policics of the Company are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Company, 1o s¢i appropnate nsk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adh to limits Risk policics and
systems ane reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts in Rs million unless otherwise stated)

(A} Credit risk

Crudit risk is the rish that @ counterparty will not mevt its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contrct, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables). balanees with hanks

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk 15 ged through established policy, p Jures and control relating 1o credit rish Credit guality of a customer 15 assessed based on an extensive credit rting scotecard and individual ercdit
limits are defined in d with this 4] ding cust receivables are regulardy monitored.
Animp analvsis is perfe ot cach reporting date. The caleulation i5 based on exchange losses histanizal data The mavimum exposure to credit risk af the reporting date is the carrying value of cach class of financial assets disclosed

inmote 10 The Campany does not hold callateral as seeurity.

Balances with banks

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company”s treasury departiment in accordanee with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus fands are made only with approved counterpartics and within credit limits assigned 1o

each counterparty. Counterparty eredit limits ane neviewed by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on an annual basis. and may be updated throughout the year The limits an: set to the of nsks and therefore nitigate
financial loss through counterparty 's potential failure to make paviments

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meetmg iis present and fature obli sated with fi ial Liabilitics that are requined to be settled by delnvenng cash or another financial asset. The Company's

is to. at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity 1o meet its cash and collaterl obligations. The Company requines funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long-tenm investment progrms mainly in projects.

objective
a1 It s to minimise these risks by ing suffi cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and

The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management syst
cash equivalents, liquid investments and sufficient committed fund facilities, will provide ligu

The liquidity nisk 1s managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial lisbilitics. The average eredit period taken to settle trade payables is zhout 30 to 90 days. The other pavables are with short term durations The carmving

ane d to be bl of fair value The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial labilitics based on contractual undiscounted pavments
{Rs. in million)
Particulars Payable on demand  Less than 1 year 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total

As at 31 March 2025
Borrowings - STHLOG - - S00.00
Trade payable = | - ] 81.71
Total - 581.71 - - S81.71
S = S
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings - - ELER - 498,65
Trade pavable - 81.94 - = 81.94
Total = B1.94 498.65 = 580.59
-l L) —
{C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a | will fl beeause of changes i market prices. Market risk compnses two types of risk: interest rte risk and currency sk Financial instruments

aftected by market nsk include borrowings and bank deposits. As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, the company did not have any financial instrument subjeet to marker risk

Naote 28: Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity copital and all ether equity reserves attributable 1o the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
ensure that it maintans a strang credit rting and healthy capital ratios in order 1o support its busi and imise shancholder value

The Company its copital and makes adj to 1t i light of changes in i ditions and the i of the tal covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to sharcholders, retum capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company manitors capital using a gearing ratio. which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s poliey is to keep the pearing
ratio optimum The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and bormowings, trade pavables, other current liabilities less eash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Farticul = &
culars i {Rs. in
Bomowings S00.00 40865
Trade pavables LTI 8194
Other current liabilitics 9.73 817
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents and other bank balonces {#6.95) (112.17)
Net debt (A) 504.49 476.59
Equity share capital 10050 fon 50
Dther equity {3925} (45,79
Total capital (B) 61.25 54.71
Capital and net debt (C)={A+B) 56_5.74 531.30
Gearing ratio (A/C) .89 0.80

Mo changes wen: made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the vears ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024




STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(ANl amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note 29; Related party disclosures
{A) Name of related party and nature of its relationship:-

Related parties where contral exists
#. Holding companies
Vedanta Incorporated , Bahamas (formerdy Volean Investments Linited, Bahamas)
Twin Star Overseas Limited, Mauritius
Sterlite Electrie Limited {*SEL’) (formerly known as Sterite Power Transmission Limited {'SPTL')
Sterlite Electne Limited ('SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (SPTL') (0l 26 June 2023)
Sterlite Interlinks Limited (SIL) (from 27 June 2023)

b. Other related parties
Maharashtra T IS PR
Vedanta Limited

Limited (MTCIL)

Uluimate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Immediate holding company
Immediane holding company

Fellow subsidian
Fellow subsidiary

(B) The transactions with related parties during the period and their ding bal are as follows:
{Rs. In million}
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Vedanta Limited SEL SIL MTCIL Vedanta Limited SEL SIL MTCIL
Transactions during the year
Loan repayment - = ELR ] - - TORLOG 15.00 -
Interest expense on borrowings = - 4197 - - - 42 bl
Subscription of cquity share capital - = - - - 11H1 560 ©
Transfer of equity share capital - - - - 50 - -
Sale of services - = 2975 - - - 29449 -
Purchase of iraded goods 4187 - - 3629 - -
Sale of traded goods - 4194 - . 36.33 - -
Management fiee expense - 384 - - 5 - &
Loan given - - - - - S0,00 -
Interest on loan given - 43.00 - - 4312 197 -
Closing balances
Bormowings - - SOHEO0 - - - 500 (1
Prepaid interest - - - - - - 1,34
Management fees payable - 114 - - 1.21 - -
Trade pavable - 78.33 - - 76.68 - -
Trade receivables (including unbilled) - 44,95 - ot - [% =] -
Interest receivable - = = - - L.50 ]
Loan given - 430,00 - - 430,00 3500 -
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STERLITE CONVERGENCE LIMITED
Nates to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024, no supplier has mtimated the company shout its status as micro or small or it with the approy th

Act, 2006 and henee, the amount due to such suppliers has not been identificd

Note 32: Deferred tax assets! liabilites (net)

ty under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

The major compoenents of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

31 March 2015 31 March 2024

ki (Rs.in million) ___{Rs.in million)

= Current tay - =

- Deferred tax ER L] 237

Income tax exy ported in the of profit and loss 3.19 237

Deferred tax :

P 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
kil (Rs. in million) ___(Rs. in million)

Deferred tax liahility

Propenty, plant and equipment : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation for the fi | reponing 27.14 2573

Gross deferred tax liability 27.14 %

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset on carmied forward lasses and unabsorbed depreciation 38 233

Gross deferred tax asset S8 2535,

Net deferred tax (Hability)asset 5.56] (2.37)

Deferred tax asset has been recognized to the extent of deferred tax liability and on the basis of probable profits in the near future against which such deferred tax assets could be utilised

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

Accounting profit/{loss) before income tax

At India’s statutory income tax rte of 25 17% (31 March 2024: 25 17%%)
Deferred tax impact on pemmanent disallowances

Deferred tax impact on set off of losses

Deferred tax impact arising out of sceumulated depreciation

Defierred tax impact on temporary differences

Others

At the effective income tax rate of Nil (31 March 2024 Nil)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Note 33: Additional dizclosures required by Schedule I {Division 11) of the act, as amended

9.73 1.84)
245 (0.46)
0.25 -

3 055

- 2573

- (23.36)
0.49 (109
319 237
319 2.37

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Division 1T of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, These i are applicable for the rep
2021 Pursuant to these amendments, the Company has given the significant additional disclosures, as applicable, in these financial statements for all the vears presented.

diate holding pany” which

During the previous vear, the Company has granted loan 1o Sterlite Interlinks Limited " 1
ining balance of Rs. 35 million has been fully paid

( 1 ling (whether

forcign entities (funding pany ) other than disclosed above with the

The Company has not received any fund from any p or

{a) dircetly or indirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding pany (ultimate beneficianes) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficianies.

b Y

of the Foreign E: T

The Company has complied with the relevant p
Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003),

peniod L on or after Apnil 1,

to Rs. 50 million, of which Rs. 15 million has been repaid during the previous year, In the current year,

ded inwriting or ethenvise) that the Company shall:

Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and the Companies Act for the above transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Meney-
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{All amounts in Rs. mi unless otherwise stated)

Naote 34: Other statutory information

(i} The Company docs not have any benami propenty. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any henami propem
) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies besond the statutory period,
(1w} Thee Company has not traded or invested in envplo curmency or vinual currency during the financial year.
() The Company has not advanced or loased or invested funds to any other personts) or entitytics), including foreign entitics (i lianes) with the und ding that the i diary shall
{a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ulti heneficianies) or
(b} provide any guarantee. seeurity or the like 1o or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
(v} The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has heen surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scorch or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),
{vii) The Company is not declared a5 a wilful defaulter by any bank or fi

li or other lender.

Note 35: Audit Trail

During the vear ended 31 March 2025, the Company has used accounting software SAP ECC for maintaining its books of account which has a featune of neconding audit trail {edit log) facility and the some has opermted thioughout the vear for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that sudit trail fiature is not cnabled for certain chanyes made using privileged! administmtive access rights to the SAP ECC application and the underlying HANA database. Further no
instance of audit trail featun: tampered with was noted in respeet of accounting software where the audit trail has been enabled,

Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the v requi for record refention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the prior vear

Duning the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has used accounting software SAP ECC for mantaining its books of account which has a featune of recording audit trail {edit log) facility snd the same has operated throughout the vear for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. except that audit tail feature 15 not enabled for certain changes made using privileged/administrative access nghts to the SAP ECC application and the underlying HANA database Further. no
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respeet of the accounting software where audit trail has been enabled.
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